An open-ended investment company with variable share capital ("SICAV")

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements as at December 31, 2021

R.C.S. Luxembourg B-78 567

No subscription can be accepted on the basis of the financial reports. Subscriptions are only valid if they are made on the basis of the latest published prospectus accompanied by the Key Investor Information Documents, the latest annual report and the most recent semi-annual report, if published thereafter.

## Table of Contents

	Page
Management and Administration	3
Information to Shareholders	5
Report on the Activities of the Fund	6
Independent Auditor's Report	8
Statement of Net Assets	11
Statement of Changes in Net Assets	12
Changes in the Number of Shares for the Year ended December 31, 2021 and Statistics	13
Statement of Holdings/Investments and Holdings/Investments Breakdowns	
MARKET ACCESS NYSE ARCA GOLD BUGS INDEX UCITS ETF	14
MARKET ACCESS ROGERS INTERNATIONAL COMMODITY INDEX UCITS ETF	16
MARKET ACCESS STOXX® CHINA A MINIMUM VARIANCE INDEX UCITS ETF	18
Notes to the Financial Statements	22
Unaudited Information for Shareholders	31

#### Management and Administration

#### R.C.S. LUXEMBOURG B 78 567

## **Board of Directors Chairman and Director**

Mr Christopher SATTERFIELD China Post & Capital Global Asset Management Limited 60, Wyndham Street Suite 1901 Central Hong Kong

#### **Directors**

Mrs Michèle EISENHUTH Arendt and Medernach S.A. 41A, Avenue J. F. Kennedy L-2082 Luxembourg Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

Mr Daniel DOLAN China Post Global (UK) Limited 75 King William Street EC4N 7BE London United Kingdom

#### **Registered Office**

11-13, Boulevard de la Foire, L-1528 Luxembourg Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

Depositary Bank, Domiciliary, Corporate, Central Administrative, Registrar, Transfer, Principal Paying and Listing Agent

RBC Investor Services Bank S.A. 14, Porte de France, L-4360 Esch-sur-Alzette Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

#### **Independent Auditor**

Ernst & Young S.A. 35E, Avenue J. F. Kennedy L-1855 Luxembourg Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

#### **Investment Manager**

China Post Global (UK) Limited 75 King William Street EC4N 7BE London United Kingdom

#### **Sponsor and Global Distributor**

China Post Global (UK) Limited 75 King William Street EC4N 7BE London United Kingdom

## Management and Administration (continued)

#### **Management Company**

FundRock Management Company S.A. 33, Rue de Gasperich, L-5826 Hesperange Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

#### Legal Advisers under Luxembourg Law

Arendt and Medernach S.A. 41A, Avenue J. F. Kennedy L-2082 Luxembourg Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

#### Information to Shareholders

#### Publication of the net asset value per share

The net asset value per share and the issue and redemption prices per share of each Sub-Fund are available at the registered office of the Fund. In addition, this information may be inserted in any newspaper that the Board of Directors considers appropriate.

#### Notices to shareholders

Notices to shareholders will be available at all times from the registered office of the Fund.

If bearer shares represented by Global Shares Certificates are issued, shareholders shall be notified via publication in those countries where the Fund is marketed in any newspaper that the Board of Directors considers appropriate, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. In Luxembourg, this will be the *Luxemburger Wort*.

Registered shareholders shall be personally notified via mail sent to the address indicated in their subscription form.

#### Shareholders' Meetings

The Annual General Meeting of shareholders will be held:

- \* at the registered office of the Fund, or at any other place in Luxembourg to be specified in the notice convening the meeting;
- \* on April 20 at 2.00 p.m. (Luxembourg time) or, if this is not a bank business day in Luxembourg, on the next Luxembourg bank business day.

To the extent required by Luxembourg law, notices of all general meetings are published in the RESA (Recueil électronique des sociétés et associations), in the *Luxemburger Wort* and in such other newspaper as the Board of Directors determines and are sent to the holders of registered shares by post at least 8 calendar days prior to the meeting at their addresses shown on the register of shareholders. These notices will state the time and the place of the general meeting and the conditions for admission, the agenda and the requirements under Luxembourg law relating to quorums and mandatory majorities.

Each whole share confers the right to one vote.

#### Financial year and reports for shareholders

The financial year of the Fund begins on January 1 and ends on December 31 of each year, this being the date at which an annual report is drawn up. Audited annual reports are published within 4 months following the end of the accounting year and unaudited semi-annual reports are published within 2 months following the period to which they refer. The annual and semi-annual reports are made available at the registered office of the Fund during ordinary office hours. The reference currency of the Fund is the Euro. The annual and semi-annual reports comprise combined accounts of the Fund expressed in euros as well as individual information on each Sub-Fund expressed in the reference currency of each Sub- Fund.

#### **Corporate Governance**

The Board is responsible for ensuring that a high level of corporate governance is met and considers that the Company has complied with the best practices in the Luxembourg funds industry. In particular, the Board has adopted the ALFI Code of Conduct (the "Code") which sets out principles of corporate governance. The Board considers that the Company has applied the principles of the Code in all material aspects throughout the year ended December 31, 2021.

#### Report on the Activities of the Fund

There were 3 Sub-Funds in operation as of December 31, 2021. All Sub-Funds' objective is to replicate, as far as possible, the performance of their benchmark index.

The Market Access STOXX® China A Minimum Variance Index UCITS ETF used a physical replication method in order to gain performance to its underlying index stated below. All other Sub-Funds use a synthetic replication method in order to gain performance to the indices stated below:

Sub-Fund name	Benchmark index
MARKET ACCESS ROGERS INTERNATIONAL COMMODITY INDEX UCITS ETF	Rogers International Commodity Index
MARKET ACCESS NYSE ARCA GOLD BUGS INDEX UCITS ETF	NYSE Arca Gold BUGS Index
MARKET ACCESS STOXX®CHINA A MINIMUM VARIANCE INDEX UCITS ETF	STOXX® China A 900 Minimum Variance Unconstrained AM Index

#### Tracking difference

The tracking difference is the difference between the return of the Sub-Fund and its benchmark index over a period of time. The table below compares each Sub-Fund's performance to the performance of the relevant benchmark index for the period December 31, 2020 to December 31, 2021. A negative tracking difference means that the Sub-Fund underperformed the benchmark index. A positive tracking difference shows an outperformance of the benchmark index by the Sub-Fund.

Sub-Fund name	Sub-Fund return	Benchmark Index return	Tracking difference	Reason for the difference
MARKET ACCESS ROGERS INTERNATIONAL COMMODITY INDEX UCITS ETF	49.51%	51.81%	(2.30%)	The Sub-Fund performed in line with the benchmark index before costs. The Sub-Fund underperformed the benchmark index due to its annual total expense ratio and transaction costs.
MARKET ACCESS NYSE ARCA GOLD BUGS INDEX UCITS ETF	(6.82%)	(5.76%)	(1.07%)	The Sub-Fund performed in line with the benchmark index before costs. The Sub-Fund underperformed the benchmark index due to its annual total expense ratio and transaction costs.
MARKET ACCESS STOXX® CHINA A MINIMUM VARIANCE INDEX UCITS ETF	16.79%	17.91%	(1.12%)	The Sub-Fund performed in line with the benchmark index before costs. The Sub-Fund underperformed the benchmark index due to its annual total expense ratio and transaction costs.

### Report on the Activities of the Fund (continued)

#### Tracking error

The tracking error is the volatility of the difference between the return of the Sub-Fund and the return of the benchmark index. It measures the quality of index replication. The table below compares the estimated tracking error of the Sub-Fund, to its realised tracking error for the period December 31, 2020 to December 31, 2021.

Sub-Fund name	Estimated tracking error up to	Realised tracking error	Reason for the difference
MARKET ACCESS ROGERS INTERNATIONAL COMMODITY INDEX UCITS ETF	0.05%	0.005%	The realised tracking error was in line with expectations.
MARKET ACCESS NYSE ARCA GOLD BUGS INDEX UCITS ETF	0.05%	0.01%	The realised tracking error was in line with expectations.
MARKET ACCESS STOXX® CHINA A MINIMUM VARIANCE INDEX UCITS ETF	2.00%	0.01%	The realised tracking error was in line with expectations.

The Board of Directors

Luxembourg, January 14, 2022



Ernst & Young Société anonyme

35E, Avenue John F. Kennedy L-1855 Luxembourg

Tel: +352 42 124 1 www.ey.com/en\_lu B.P. 780 L-2017 Luxembourg R.C.S. Luxembourg B 47 771 TVA LU 16063074

#### Independent auditor's report

To the Shareholders of Market Access 11-13, Boulevard de la Foire L-1528 Luxembourg Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

#### Report on the audit of the financial statements

#### Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Market Access and of each of its sub-funds (the "Fund"), which comprise the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Holdings/Investments as at December 31, 2021, and the Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Fund and of each of its subfunds as at December 31, 2021, and of the results of their operations and changes in their net assets for the year then ended in accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements.

#### Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with EU Regulation N° 537/2014, the Law of July 23, 2016 on the audit profession (the "Law of July 23, 2016") and with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAs") as adopted for Luxembourg by the "Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier" ("CSSF"). Our responsibilities under the EU Regulation N° 537/2014, the Law of July 23, 2016 and ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF are further described in the "Responsibilities of the "réviseur d'entreprises agréé" for the audit of the financial statements" section of our report. We are also independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, including International Independence Standards, issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants ("IESBA Code") as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

#### Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

#### Other information

The Board of Directors of the Fund is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our report of "réviseur d'entreprises agréé" thereon.



Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

#### Responsibilities of the Board of Directors of the Fund for the financial statements

The Board of Directors of the Fund is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors of the Fund determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Fund is responsible for assessing the Fund's and of each of its sub-funds' ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Fund or any of its sub-funds or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

#### Responsibilities of the "réviseur d'entreprises agréé" for the audit of the financial statements

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a report of the "réviseur d'entreprises agréé" that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with EU Regulation N° 537/2014, the Law of July 23, 2016 and with the ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with EU Regulation N° 537/2014, the Law of July 23, 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund's internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors of the Fund.



- Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors of the Fund use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's or any of its sub-funds' ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our report of the "réviseur d'entreprises agréé" to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report of the "réviseur d'entreprises agréé". However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund or any of its sub-funds to cease to continue as a going concern.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter.

#### Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

We have been appointed as "réviseur d'entreprises agréé" by the General Meeting of the Shareholders on April 19, 2021 and the duration of our uninterrupted engagement, including previous renewals and reappointments, is five years.

We confirm that the prohibited non-audit services referred to in EU Regulation No 537/2014 were not provided and that we remained independent of the Fund in conducting the audit.

Ernst & Young Société anonyme Cabinet de révision agréé

**Bernard Lhoest** 

## Statement of Net Assets as at December 31, 2021

			MARKET ACCESS	MARKET ACCESS	
		MARKET ACCESS	ROGERS	STOXX® CHINA A	
		<b>NYSE ARCA GOLD</b>	INTERNATIONAL	MINIMUM	
		BUGS INDEX	COMMODITY	VARIANCE INDEX	
		UCITS ETF	INDEX UCITS ETF	UCITS ETF	COMBINED
No	otes	EUR	EUR	CNH	EUR
ASSETS					
Investments in securities at market					
value	(2c)	69,621,419.90	68,313,219.24	206,342,109.18	166,468,347.22
Cash at bank		5,180,255.46	3,550,629.71	355,626.60	8,780,062.46
Unrealised appreciation on swaps	(6)	756,385.85	0.00	0.00	756,385.85
TOTAL ASSETS		75,558,061.21	71,863,848.95	206,697,735.78	176,004,795.53
LIABILITIES					
Bank overdraft		41.87	0.00	0.00	41.87
Unrealised depreciation on swaps	(6)	0.00	896,567.28	0.00	896,567.28
Service agent fees and taxes payable	(3)	59,579.23	90,574.09	223,122.79	181,007.52
Interest payable	(0)	388.05	294.87	6.34	683.80
Payable fees on swaps	(7)	923.27	12,657.75	0.00	13,581.02
Other liabilities	(,)	0.00	0.00	143,466.63	19,839.07
TOTAL LIABILITIES		60,932.42	1,000,093.99	366,595.76	1,111,720.56
TOTAL NET ASSETS		75,497,128.79	70,863,754.96	206,331,140.02	174,893,074.97
Net asset value per share					
- Class Capitalisation		EUR 92.8016	EUR 23.0442	0.00	
- Class EUR C		0.00	0.00	CNH 864.3554	
Number of shares outstanding					
- Class Capitalisation		813,533.00	3,075,122.00	0.00	
- Class EUR C		0.00	0.00	238,711.00	
				,	

## Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the Year ended December 31, 2021

		MARKET ACCESS NYSE ARCA GOLD BUGS INDEX UCITS ETF		MARKET ACCESS STOXX® CHINA A MINIMUM VARIANCE INDEX UCITS ETF	COMBINED
	Notes	EUR	EUR	CNH	EUR
NET ASSETS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR		77,700,273.18	43,110,284.38	211,113,961.66	147,369,110.22
INCOME					
Dividends		0.00	0.00	6,526,536.92	902,512.34
Bank interest		647.10	3,658.19	6,466.42	5,199.49
Other income		1,563.54	5,734.30	97,248.78	20,745.74
TOTAL INCOME		2,210.64	9,392.49	6,630,252.12	928,457.57
EXPENSES					
Service agent fees	(3)	489,181.16	357,984.79	946,614.98	978,067.18
Bank interest		50,812.62	30,492.38	2,376.97	81,633.70
Bank charges and correspondent fees	(7)	81,817.24	186,136.83	911,857.88	394,048.96
Charge on swaps	(7)	214,848.52	377,737.87	0.00	592,586.39
TOTAL EXPENSES		836,659.54	952,351.87	1,860,849.83	2,046,336.23
NET INCOME / (LOSS) FROM					
INVESTMENTS		(834,448.90)	(942,959.38)	4,769,402.29	(1,117,878.66)
Net realised gain / (loss) on sales of	(2f)	28,081,983.08	11,285,735.60	15,026,256.14	41,445,601.90
investments Net realised gain / (loss) on foreign	(21)	20,001,703.00	11,265,735.00	15,020,250.14	41,445,001.90
exchange	(2h)	(143,111.02)	1,042.49	(27,878.61)	(145,923.68)
Net realised gain / (loss) on swaps	(2g)	(32,818,448.37)	15,350,112.67	0.00	(17,468,335.70)
Net result for the year before changes	( ),	, , , ,			, , ,
in unrealised appreciation /					
(depreciation)		(5,714,025.21)	25,693,931.38	19,767,779.82	22,713,463.86
Changes in unrealised appreciation					
/(depreciation) on: - Investments		(1,017,433.45)	(1,766,968.36)	(9,880,446.00)	(4,150,704.42)
- swaps		1,555,540.60	(1,606,560.70)	0.00	(51,020.10)
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN NET		1,555,540.00	(1,000,300.70)	0.00	(31,020.10)
ASSETS AS A RESULT OF OPERATIONS		(5,175,918.06)	22,320,402.32	9,887,333.82	18,511,739.34
MOVEMENTS IN CAPITAL					
Issue of shares		4,093,620.70	12,115,292.80	0.00	16,208,913.50
Redemption of shares		(1,120,847.03)	(6,682,224.54)	(14,670,155.46)	(9,831,711.94)
Currency translation		0.00	0.00	0.00	2,635,023.85
NET ASSETS AT THE END OF THE YEAR		75,497,128.79	70,863,754.96	206,331,140.02	174,893,074.97

## Changes in the Number of Shares for the Year ended December 31, 2021

Class Capitalisation	MARKET ACCESS NYSE ARCA GOLD BUGS INDEX UCITS ETF EUR	MARKET ACCESS ROGERS INTERNATIONAL COMMODITY INDEX UCITS ETF EUR	MARKET ACCESS STOXX® CHINA A MINIMUM VARIANCE INDEX UCITS ETF CNH
Number of shares outstanding at the			
beginning of the year	780,154.00	2,797,038.00	0.00
Number of shares issued	46,000.00	609,000.00	0.00
Number of shares redeemed	(12,621.00)	(330,916.00)	0.00
Number of shares outstanding at the			
end of the year	813,533.00	3,075,122.00	0.00
Class EUR C			
Number of shares outstanding at the			
beginning of the year	0.00	0.00	255,931.00
Number of shares issued	0.00	0.00	0.00
Number of shares redeemed	0.00	0.00	(17,220.00)
Number of shares outstanding at the			
end of the year	0.00	0.00	238,711.00

### **Statistics**

	MARKET ACCESS NYSE ARCA GOLD BUGS INDEX UCITS ETF EUR	MARKET ACCESS ROGERS INTERNATIONAL COMMODITY INDEX UCITS ETF EUR	MARKET ACCESS STOXX® CHINA A MINIMUM VARIANCE INDEX UCITS ETF CNH
Total Net Asset Value			
- December 31, 2021	75,497,128.79	70,863,754.96	206,331,140.02
- December 31, 2020	77,700,273.18	43,110,284.38	211,113,961.66
- December 31, 2019	95,081,105.81	56,851,659.91	221,376,969.14
Net asset value per Class			
Capitalisation share as at:			
- December 31, 2021	92.8016	23.0442	0.0000
- December 31, 2020	99.5961	15.4128	0.0000
- December 31, 2019	87.8222	18.4715	0.0000
Net asset value per Class EUR C as at:			
- December 31, 2021	0.0000	0.0000	864.3554
- December 31, 2020	0.0000	0.0000	824.8862
- December 31, 2019	0.0000	0.0000	715.2475

## Statement of Holdings as at December 31, 2021

(expressed in EUR)

### MARKET ACCESS NYSE ARCA GOLD BUGS INDEX UCITS ETF

Description	Quantity (	Currency	Cost	Market Value EUR	% net assets
Transferable securities admitted to an official stock ex	kchange listing				
Shares					
Bermuda I slands	0.440		4.047.000.70		0.70
EVEREST REINSURANCE GROUP LTD	8,448	USD	1,967,389.70 <b>1,967,389.70</b>	2,034,889.34 <b>2,034,889.34</b>	2.70 <b>2.70</b>
			1,707,307.70	2,034,007.34	2.70
Curacao					
SCHLUMBERGER LTD	100,000	USD	2,594,383.57	2,633,661.63	3.49
			2,594,383.57	2,633,661.63	3.49
Germany					
ALLIANZ SE/NAM.VINKULIERT	10,000	EUR	2,011,000.00	2,076,500.00	2.75
			2,011,000.00	2,076,500.00	2.75
Panama					
CARNIVAL CORP	80,000	USD	1,220,886.38	1,415,406.26	1.87
			1,220,886.38	1,415,406.26	1.87
United States of America					
ADVANCED MICRO DEVICES INC	18,000	USD	2,299,968.95	2,277,699.61	3.02
ALPHABET INC -A-	1,000	USD	2,519,879.33	2,547,520.23	3.37
ANALOG DEVICES INC ANTHEM INC	15,000 5,000	USD USD	2,406,148.80	2,318,457.62	3.07 2.70
AVERY DENNISON CORP	15,000	USD	1,752,362.36 2,737,145.65	2,038,075.98 2,856,621.53	3.78
BANK OF AMERICA CORP	40,000	USD	1,556,985.05	1,564,896.24	2.07
DIAMONDBACK ENERGY INC SHS	15,000	USD	1,410,762.61	1,422,572.99	1.88
DOMINION ENERGY INC	50,000	USD	3,240,317.64	3,454,097.78	4.57
EXPEDIA GROUP INC	4,181	USD	674,446.67	664,430.46	0.88
FISERV INC.	12,000	USD	1,070,050.13	1,095,216.32	1.45
HENRY JACK & ASSOCIATES INC.	19,415	USD	2,653,208.20	2,850,959.24	3.78
INTERPUBLIC GROUP JUNIPER NETWORKS INC.	65,000 80,745	USD USD	1,985,093.83 2,240,269.86	2,140,564.54 2,535,529.33	2.84 3.36
MCKESSON CORP	16,000	USD	3,104,174.62	3,497,291.59	4.63
MICROSOFT CORP.	10,000	USD	2,865,977.55	2,957,439.32	3.92
MORGAN STANLEY	18,352	USD	1,599,174.77	1,584,094.55	2.10
MOSAIC CO	85,777	USD	2,618,860.36	2,963,575.74	3.93
NORTHROP GRUMMAN CORP	5,039	USD	1,599,889.77	1,715,129.91	2.27
NVIDIA CORP. PAYPAL HOLDINGS INC	4,084 20,000	USD USD	1,112,197.44 3,263,919.08	1,056,230.43 3,316,567.01	1.40 4.39
PEPSICO INC	15,000	USD	2,192,138.77	2,291,285.61	3.03
REGIONS FINANCIAL CORP	122,701	USD	2,384,234.86	2,352,164.79	3.12
UNITEDHEALTH GROUP INC	8,012	USD	3,194,136.76	3,537,764.40	4.69
UNIV.HEALTH SERV.INC-B-	20,000	USD	2,158,555.52	2,280,337.67	3.02
WASTE MANAGEMENT INC	22,056	USD	3,194,162.03	3,237,026.38	4.29
WEYERHAEUSER CO	80,234	USD	2,728,689.25	2,905,413.40	3.85
			58,562,749.86	61,460,962.67	81.41
Total - Shares	otook ovobanna !!-!!	ina	66,356,409.51	69,621,419.90	92.22
TOTAL - Transferable securities admitted to an official	Stock exchange listi	ing	66,356,409.51	69,621,419.90	92.22
TOTAL EQUITY BASKET			66,356,409.51	69,621,419.90	92.22

## Holdings Breakdowns as at December 31, 2021

(expressed as a percentage of net assets)

#### MARKET ACCESS NYSE ARCA GOLD BUGS INDEX UCITS ETF

Geographical breakdown	% Economic breakdown		%
United States of America	81.41	Internet Software	13.40
Curacao	3.49	Electronic Semiconductor	10.85
Germany	2.75	Healthcare Education and Social Services	10.41
Bermuda Islands	2.70	Insurance	5.45
Panama	1.87	Petrol	5.37
	92.22	Banks and Financial Institutions	5.19
	72.22	Pharmaceuticals and Cosmetics	4.63
		Public Services	4.57
		Other Services	4.39
		Environmental Services & Recycling	4.29
		Chemicals	3.93
		Real Estate Companies	3.85
		Office Equipment, Computers	3.78
		Food and Distilleries	3.03
		Graphic Art, Publishing	2.84
		Aerospace Technology	2.27
		Holding and Finance Companies	2.10

Leisure

1.87

92.22

## Statement of Holdings as at December 31, 2021

(expressed in EUR)

#### MARKET ACCESS ROGERS INTERNATIONAL COMMODITY INDEX UCITS ETF

Description	Quantity Co	urrency	Cost	Market Value EUR	% net assets
Transferable securities admitted to an official stock ex	change listing				
Shares					
Belgium					
AGEAS NV	69,414	EUR	3,086,146.44	3,161,807.70	4.46
WAREHOUSES DE PAUW SCA SICAF	43,923	EUR	1,304,513.10	1,852,672.14	2.62
			4,390,659.54	5,014,479.84	7.08
Finland					
ELISA CORPORATION A	39,624	EUR	1,933,651.20	2,144,450.88	3.02
			1,933,651.20	2,144,450.88	3.02
Germany					
ALLIANZ SE/NAM.VINKULIERT	14,933	EUR	2,937,321.10	3,100,837.45	4.38
BAYER AG	56,345	EUR	2,729,351.80	2,648,215.00	3.74
BRENNTAG	33,524	EUR	2,638,338.80	2,667,839.92	3.76
DERMAPHARM HOLDING SE	12,339	EUR	976,014.90	1,101,872.70	1.55
DEUTSCHE TELEKOM /NAM.	150,000	EUR	2,625,000.00	2,445,000.00	3.45
FUCHS PETROLUB SE /PFD	31,571	EUR	1,312,722.18	1,260,314.32	1.78
GEA GROUP AG	70,000	EUR	2,499,000.00	3,366,300.00	4.75
HUGO BOSS	53,000	EUR	3,088,840.00	2,835,500.00	4.00
LANXESS AG	24,730	EUR	1,428,899.40	1,347,785.00	1.90
SIEMENS HEALTHINEERS AG	5,370	EUR	256,286.24	353,453.40	0.50
SILTRONIC AG	20,444	EUR	2,729,274.00	2,891,803.80	4.08
WESTWING GROUP AG	36,399	EUR	1,596,149.94	805,873.86	1.14
			24,817,198.36	24,824,795.45	35.03
The Netherlands	40.000	ELID	0.707.400.00	0.707.400.00	0.05
AALBERTS BEARER SHS ADYEN B.V.144A	48,000 1,100	EUR EUR	2,726,400.00	2,796,480.00	3.95 3.59
AKZO NOBEL	32,824	EUR	2,788,500.00 3,086,112.48	2,542,650.00 3,167,516.00	4.47
ASM INTERNATIONAL REG NV	8,124	EUR	3,086,307.60	3,157,798.80	4.47
ASR NEDERLAND NV	75,000	EUR	3,000,000.00	3,037,500.00	4.29
ING GROUP NV	208,159	EUR	2,729,380.81	2,548,282.48	3.59
KONINKLIJKE AHOLD DELHAIZE N.V.	71,002	EUR	2,013,971.73	2,139,645.27	3.02
KONINKLIJKE DSM NV	14,654	EUR	2,729,307.50	2,901,492.00	4.09
KONINKLIJKE KPN NV	970,000	EUR	2,643,250.00	2,648,100.00	3.74
KONINKLIJKE PHILIPS NV/EUR 0.2	94,885	EUR	3,086,134.63	3,108,907.03	4.39
OCI	88,737	EUR	1,918,493.94	2,042,725.74	2.88
QIAGEN N.V.	62,725	EUR	3,086,070.00	3,072,897.75	4.34
WOLTERS KLUWER NV	30,555	EUR	3,086,055.00	3,165,498.00	4.47
			35,979,983.69	36,329,493.07	51.27
Total - Shares			67,121,492.79	68,313,219.24	96.40
TOTAL - Transferable securities admitted to an official	stock exchange listin	ıg	67,121,492.79	68,313,219.24	96.40
TOTAL EQUITY BASKET			67,121,492.79	68,313,219.24	96.40

## Holdings Breakdowns as at December 31, 2021

(expressed as a percentage of net assets)

#### MARKET ACCESS ROGERS INTERNATIONAL COMMODITY INDEX UCITS ETF

Geographical breakdown	<u>%</u>
The Netherlands	51.27
Germany	35.03
Belgium	7.08
Finland	3.02
	96.40

Economic breakdown	%
Chemicals	20.84
Electronic Semiconductor	12.92
Banks and Financial Institutions	11.64
News Transmission	10.21
Mechanics, Machinery	8.70
Insurance	8.67
Graphic Art, Publishing	4.47
Biotechnology	4.34
Textile	4.00
Retail	3.02
Real Estate Companies	2.62
Pharmaceuticals and Cosmetics	2.05
Petrol	1.78
Internet Software	1.14

96.40

## Statement of Investments as at December 31, 2021

(expressed in CNH)

Description

### MARKET ACCESS STOXX® CHINA A MINIMUM VARIANCE INDEX UCITS ETF

Quantity Currency

Cost

Market Value

% net

escription	Quantity C	unionoy	Cost	CNH	asset
ansferable securities admitted to an official stock	exchange listing				
nares					
China					
360 SECURITY TECHNOLOGY INC.	140,700	CNY	1,691,487.18	1,789,704.00	0.8
ACCELINK TECHNOLOGIES CO -A-	20,800	CNY	483,683.38	484,432.00	0.2
ADDSINO CO LTD	22,600	CNY	501,210.73	377,420.00	0.1
AGRICULTURAL BANK OF CHINA -A-	2,430,000	CNY	8,221,125.56	7,144,200.00	3.4
ANHUI CONCH CEMENT CO LTD -A-	47,700	CNY	2,036,336.19	1,922,310.00	0.9
ASYMCHEM LA -A-	1,200	CNY	252,111.07	522,000.00	0.2
AUTOBIO DIAGNOSTICS CO LTD -A-	1,850	CNY	171,464.88	101,861.00	0.0
AVARY HOLDING-A RG	34,600	CNY	1,375,049.63	1,468,078.00	0.7
BANK OF BEIJING CO LTD BANK OF CHINA LTD	537,500	CNY	2,643,680.83	2,386,500.00	1.1
BANK OF CHINA LID  BANK OF COMMUNICATIONS CO LTD	3,328,300	CNY CNY	10,953,942.95	10,151,315.00	4.9
BANK OF COMMUNICATIONS COLID  BANK OF JIANGSU CO LTD -A-	665,400 13,270	CNY	3,488,204.11 85,551.68	3,067,494.00 77,364.10	1.4 0.0
BANK OF SHANGHAI -A-	64,700	CNY	462,886.59	461,311.00	0.0
BAOSHAN IRON & STEEL CO -A-	292,900	CNY	1,556,571.26	2,097,164.00	1.0
BBMG CORP	38,700	CNY	118,534.18	109,908.00	0.0
BEIJING BDSTAR -A-	6,300	CNY	268,669.45	247,275.00	0.0
BEIJING CAPITAL CO LTD -A-	322,000	CNY	1,039,620.05	1,098,020.00	0.5
BEIJING ZHONGK HIGH-TECH -A-	121,300	CNY	1,285,534.76	1,946,865.00	0.9
BEIJING-SHA	318,500	CNY	1,937,115.73	1,538,355.00	0.7
BJ TIANTAN	59,820	CNY	1,548,717.69	1,732,387.20	0.8
BRIGHT DAIRY & FOOD CO LTD	36,400	CNY	435,709.02	528,528.00	0.2
BTG HOTELS (GROUP) CO LTD	3,400	CNY	83,264.71	88,842.00	0.0
CD KANGHONG	8,100	CNY	301,719.42	164,835.00	0.0
CD XINGRONG	99,200	CNY	463,395.94	626,944.00	0.3
CGN POWER-A RG	511,600	CNY	1,426,538.80	1,601,308.00	0.7
CHANGCHUN	8,000	CNY	2,015,915.60	2,171,200.00	1.0
CHINA CITIC	169,700	CNY	829,933.13	784,014.00	0.3
CHINA CONSTRUCTION BK SHS -A-	102,200	CNY	666,099.94	598,892.00	0.2
CHINA EVERBRIGHT BANK CO LTD	378,800	CNY	1,441,888.11	1,257,616.00	0.0
CHINA MERCHANTS BANK CO -A-	18,500	CNY	698,893.79	901,135.00	0.4
CHINA MINSHENG BK CORP -A-	542,480	CNY	3,254,557.93	2,115,672.00	1.0
CHINA NATL MEDICINE CORP -A-	16,200	CNY	498,277.46	510,786.00	0.2
CHINA PETROLEUM & CHEMA-	1,812,300	CNY	8,181,397.08	7,666,029.00	3.7
CHINA RAILWAY GROUP LTD	358,400	CNY	2,044,124.18	2,075,136.00	1.0
CHINA YANGTZE POWER CO LTD -A-	655,350	CNY	11,951,564.90	14,876,445.00	7.2
CN MER EXP NW-A RG	26,900	CNY	186,190.34	206,323.00	0.
CN SANJIU	39,700	CNY	1,135,702.00	1,359,328.00	0.
CN SOUTH PUBLIS -A-	35,600	CNY	395,129.13	340,692.00	0.
CN SOUTHERN RG-A	30,600	CNY	280,466.62	253,674.00	0.
CN UNIVERSE	24,000	CNY	270,946.02	296,640.00	0.
CN UTD NETWK -A- CN ZHESHANG RG-A	3,121,200 305,100	CNY CNY	12,769,272.93 1,090,038.29	12,266,316.00 1,067,850.00	5.9 0.9
CQ RURAL-A RG	211,600	CNY	823,733.93	814,660.00	0.:
CTFO -A-	72,500	CNY	1,070,513.66	1,083,875.00	0
DALIAN PORT (PDA) COMPANY LTD	114,500	CNY	191,339.92	198,085.00	0.:
DAQIN RAILWAY -A-	371,400	CNY	2,359,825.56	2,376,960.00	1.
DAWNING INFORMATION INDUSTRY	83,500	CNY	2,411,082.29	2,302,095.00	1.
DONG-E E JIAO -A-	19,800	CNY	725,869.72	965,250.00	0.4
DONGFANG EL -A-	147,900	CNY	2,408,022.76	3,168,018.00	1.
FIBERHOME TELECOMMUNICATION TECH	49,900	CNY	920,695.22	897,202.00	0.4
FINANCIAL STREET HOLDG CO -A-	14,200	CNY	99,320.84	80,372.00	0.0
FOXCONN IND INT-REGISTERED-A-	222,100	CNY	2,696,749.27	2,647,432.00	1.2
GAN & LEE RG-A	1,500	CNY	231,725.97	105,510.00	0.0

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

## Statement of Investments as at December 31, 2021 (continued)

(expressed in CNH)

#### MARKET ACCESS STOXX® CHINA A MINIMUM VARIANCE INDEX UCITS ETF

Description	Quantity	Currency	Cost	Market Value CNH	% net assets
GD POWER DEVEVLOPMENT CO LTD	513,700	CNY	1,238,578.16	1,628,429.00	0.79
GLARUN TECHNOLOGY CO LTD	27,500	CNY	390,583.03	505,450.00	0.25
GREENLAND HOLDINGS CORPORATION	182,610	CNY	957,326.29	792,527.40	0.38
GRG BANKING EQUIPMENT -A-	14,200	CNY	141,518.08	168,980.00	0.08
GUANGDONG	42,100	CNY	240,357.12	249,232.00	0.12
GUANGDONG HAID GROUP CO LTD	10,600	CNY	402,810.17	776,980.00	0.38
GUANGXI WUZHOU ZHONGHENG GP -A-	140,600	CNY	424,982.83	542,716.00	0.26
GUANGZHOU SY-A RG	1,100	CNY	97,508.86	89,540.00	0.04
GZ BYS PHAR	48,400	CNY	1,552,409.16	1,655,280.00	0.80
GZ HAIGE CM	214,100	CNY	2,132,837.38	2,337,972.00	1.13
HAITIAN	43,946	CNY	3,920,078.01	4,619,164.06	2.24
HANGZHOU	1,600	CNY	99,292.40	86,720.00	0.04
HBIS COMPANY LIMITED -A-	48,100	CNY	122,083.75	118,326.00	0.06
HEILONGJIAN	9,600	CNY	136,787.20	139,776.00	0.07
HUA XIA BANK CO LTD -A-	157,400	CNY	1,146,994.19	881,440.00	0.43
HUADIAN POW	367,100	CNY	1,320,828.13	1,963,985.00	0.95
HUAFA INDUSTRIAL CO LTD -A-	27,000	CNY	166,267.06	162,540.00	0.08
HUAGONG TECH -A- SHS	71,900	CNY	1,729,755.93	2,003,134.00	0.97
HUALAN BIO	20,400	CNY	677,938.08	594,456.00	0.29
HUANENG POWER INTERNATIONAL -A-	172,600	CNY	970,756.05	1,672,494.00	0.81
HUBEI ENERGY GROUP CO LTD	132,400	CNY	548,537.31	693,776.00	0.34
HUMANWELL HLTH -A- SHS -A-	12,000	CNY	315,370.89	270,240.00	0.13
ICBC -A-	1,038,200	CNY	5,844,355.16	4,806,866.00	2.33
INDUSTRIAL BANK CO LTD -A-	38,700	CNY	734,645.46	736,848.00	0.36
INNER MONGOLIA YI LI INDA-	71,400	CNY	2,308,339.62	2,960,244.00	1.43
INSPUR ELE	2,900	CNY	93,175.68	103,907.00	0.05
JGSU YUYUE MED -A-	7,700	CNY	168,393.23	291,060.00	0.14
JIANGSU HENDRUI MEDICINE CO -A-	76,832	CNY	4,601,267.13	3,896,150.72	1.89
JL AODONG MED. IND (GR) CO LTD -A-	101,310	CNY	1,656,607.78	1,871,195.70	0.91
JS JIANGYIN-A-	38,100	CNY	144,868.13	146,685.00	0.07
JSU NHWA PHARM -A-	28,700	CNY	411,862.16	449,155.00	0.22
JTOWN PH	45,900	CNY	651,100.38	675,648.00	0.33
JX LC OPTEL	5,400	CNY	156,046.92	167,616.00	0.08
KWEICHOW MOUTAI CO LTD -A-	2,800	CNY	3,584,298.83	5,740,000.00	2.78
LINGYI	122,800	CNY	847,653.73	903,808.00	0.44
LIVZON PHARMACEUTIC	9,800	CNY	387,355.14	394,058.00	0.19
MEINIAN	14,500	CNY	166,342.93	113,825.00	0.06
METALLURGICAL SHS -A-	238,600	CNY	662,819.59	913,838.00	0.44
NANJG KING-A RG	5,368	CNY	170,687.98	225,456.00	0.11
NEWLAND	72,700	CNY	1,231,553.19	1,317,324.00	0.64
NINGBO ZSH PORT SHS -A-	57,600	CNY	237,432.72	228,672.00	0.11
OFFSHORE OIL ENGINEERING CO -A-	126,400	CNY	607,302.41	582,704.00	0.28
PCI TECH RG-A	24,500	CNY	186,842.45	204,085.00	0.10
PENGDU AGRI RG-A	46,300	CNY	112,114.20	176,866.00	0.09
PETROCHINA SHARES -A-	1,768,200	CNY	9,488,450.09	8,681,862.00	4.21
PING AN INSURANCE -A-	2,600	CNY	213,609.30	131,066.00	0.06
POSTAL SAVINGS RG-A	40,000	CNY	208,927.10	204,000.00	0.10
POWER CONST	109,500	CNY	546,235.40	884,760.00	0.43
PTZEHUANG	10,100	CNY	1,487,052.13	4,415,215.00	2.14
SANSTEEL	82,900	CNY	558,716.63	563,720.00	0.27
SD BUCHANG	33,600	CNY	846,257.33	708,624.00	0.34
SH CONSTR	173,200	CNY	598,514.06	623,520.00	0.30
SH ENVIRONMENT-A RG	15,500	CNY	187,198.89	195,145.00	0.09
SHANGAI J -SHS A -	3,700	CNY	117,246.12	149,517.00	0.07
SHANGHAI 2345 NETWORK HOLD -A-	375,100	CNY	767,599.52	877,734.00	0.43
SHANGHAI ELECTRIC GROUP CO LTD	42,900	CNY	206,275.60	208,494.00	0.10
SHANGHAI IN	25,300	CNY	108,997.05	138,644.00	0.07
SHANGHAI M&G STATIONERY -A-	1,600	CNY	130,015.10	103,216.00	0.05
SHANGHAI PHARMACEUTICAL -A-	75,000	CNY	1,362,764.51	1,490,250.00	0.72
SHANGHAI PUDONG DEVEL.BKA-	15,700	CNY	156,781.38	133,921.00	0.06

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

## Statement of Investments as at December 31, 2021 (continued)

(expressed in CNH)

#### MARKET ACCESS STOXX® CHINA A MINIMUM VARIANCE INDEX UCITS ETF

Description	Quantity	Currency	Cost	Market Value CNH	% net assets
SHANGHAI TUNNEL ENGINEER -A-	69,500	CNY	409,605.83	373,910.00	0.18
SHANXI XING HUA CUN WINE -A-	980	CNY	67,724.20	309,464.40	0.15
SHENGYI TECHNOLOGY CO LTD	88,200	CNY	2,047,547.74	2,077,110.00	1.01
SHENZHEN AIRPORT SHS -A-	42,300	CNY	324,678.35	309,636.00	0.15
SHENZHEN ENER. GROUP CO LTD -A-	26,400	CNY	138,874.04	213,840.00	0.10
SHENZHEN OVERSEAS CHIN TWN /-A-	376,400	CNY	2,648,108.34	2,649,856.00	1.28
SHG JIN JG	8,200	CNY	424,904.55	480,520.00	0.23
SHG RAAS BL	71,200	CNY	635,321.37	485,584.00	0.24
SHZ SALUB	24,700	CNY	684,370.14	674,804.00	0.33
SHZ SLORD ELECTRO-A	29,700	CNY	1,030,964.57	1,133,946.00	0.55
SHZH KINWONG-A RG	4,400	CNY	127,633.65	151,932.00	0.07
SICHUAN CHUANTOU ENERGY CO LTD	56,400	CNY	569,955.53	705,000.00	0.34
SICHUAN DEV LOMON RG-A	52,900	CNY	600,501.58	691,932.00	0.34
SUZHOU	11,200	CNY	86,628.70	68,096.00	0.03
TANGSHAN PORT GROUP CO LTD	298,500	CNY	841,744.82	820,875.00	0.40
TIANMA MICROELECTRONICS CO LTD	45,100	CNY	665,516.17	587,202.00	0.28
TJIN ZH	12,800	CNY	577,396.12	534,400.00	0.26
TPCHOICE M	9,800	CNY	1,220,857.94	1,950,200.00	0.95
TPV TECH RG-A REGISTERED SHS -A-	115,500	CNY	291,228.63	347,655.00	0.17
USI (SH)	103,000	CNY	1,475,044.30	1,654,180.00	0.80
VISIONOX TECH-A RG	11,400	CNY	98,555.95	105,792.00	0.05
WASU MEDIA HOLDING CO LTD -A-	52,600	CNY	436,096.92	444,996.00	0.22
WEIFU HI-TECH GROUP CO LTD -A-	13,300	CNY	261,126.31	286,482.00	0.14
WESTONE INFORMATION IND -A-	3,100	CNY	189,215.11	173,414.00	0.08
WULIANGYE YIBIN CO LTD -A-	10,600	CNY	1,580,398.35	2,360,196.00	1.14
WUS PRINTED	18,300	CNY	220,099.89	303,414.00	0.15
WUXI APPTEC CO LTD.	19,460	CNY	1,474,172.43	2,307,566.80	1.12
WUXI NCE POWER RG-A	2,400	CNY	441,604.64	427,440.00	0.21
XIAMEN C&D INC	28,400	CNY	229,150.60	257,588.00	0.12
XIAMEN ITG GROUP CORP LTD	134,200	CNY	1,060,338.15	967,582.00	0.47
XINXING PIP	36,200	CNY	140,775.32	156,746.00	0.08
XINYU IRON & STEEL CO LTD	161,700	CNY	694,353.45	853,776.00	0.41
YIFAN PHARMA -A-	5,900	CNY	113,097.80	103,958.00	0.05
YOUNGOR GROUP CO LTD	84,200	CNY	587,343.49	580,138.00	0.28
YUNNAN BAIYAO GROUP CO LTD -A-	38,500	CNY	3,401,434.10	4,029,025.00	1.95
ZHEJG DAHUA	12,500	CNY	302,058.75	293,500.00	0.14
ZHEJIANG HUAHAI PHARMACEUTA-	12,480	CNY	244,291.14	270,316.80	0.13
ZHEJIANG JUHUA CO LTD	10,800	CNY	86,951.61	139,428.00	0.07
ZHEJIANG NHU CO LTD	36,000	CNY	835,159.65	1,120,320.00	0.54
ZHEJIANG SEMIR GARMENT CO LTD	36,900	CNY	359,714.60	285,237.00	0.14
ZJ HISOAR PHA -A-	64,000	CNY	508,073.58	527,360.00	0.26
ZJ QUARTZ C	29,500	CNY	419,154.98	513,005.00	0.25
ZJ WEIMING -A-	3,400	CNY	88,045.56	124,202.00	0.06
			193,804,526.44	206,342,109.18	100.01
Total - Shares			193,804,526.44	206,342,109.18	100.01
TOTAL - Transferable securities admitted to an official stock ex	change lis	ting	193,804,526.44	206,342,109.18	100.01
TOTAL INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO			193,804,526.44	206,342,109.18	100.01

## Investments Breakdowns as at December 31, 2021

(expressed as a percentage of net assets)

### MARKET ACCESS STOXX® CHINA A MINIMUM VARIANCE INDEX UCITS ETF

Geographical breakdown	%
China	100.01
	100.01

Economic breakdown	%
Banks and Financial Institutions	18.09
Pharmaceuticals and Cosmetics	12.99
Public Services	10.70
Petrol	8.21
News Transmission	6.54
Electronics and Electrical Equipment	5.81
Tobacco and Spirits	4.07
Construction, Building Material	3.79
Electronic Semiconductor	3.47
Internet Software	3.45
Other Business Houses	2.97
Transportation	2.68
Food and Distilleries	2.65
Non-Ferrous Metals	2.21
Office Equipment, Computers	1.84
Leisure	1.55
Biotechnology	1.36
Chemicals	1.36
Graphic Art, Publishing	1.32
Mechanics, Machinery	0.96
Textile	0.72
Other Services	0.64
Environmental Services & Recycling	0.51
Photography and Optics	0.48
Holding and Finance Companies	0.44
Automobile Industry	0.34
Mines, Heavy Industries	0.33
Agriculture and Fishing	0.16
Retail	0.14
Real Estate Companies	0.12
Insurance	0.06
Consumer Goods	0.05

100.01

## Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2021

#### 1. General

MARKET ACCESS (referred to hereinafter as the "Fund"), is a Luxembourg open-ended investment company with variable share capital, sponsored by China Post Global (UK) Limited incorporated on October 31, 2000 for an unlimited period as a public limited company (société anonyme) under the name "Unifund" and organised in accordance with the provisions of Part I of the Law of December 17, 2010, as amended (the "2010 Law") on undertakings for collective investment (UCIs). The Fund has appointed FundRock Management Company S.A. to act as management company of the Fund under Chapter 15 of the 2010 Law (the "Management Company").

The articles of incorporation of the Fund (the "Articles") have been filed with the Luxembourg Trade and Companies' Register (where they are available to the public or from where a copy may be obtained) and they have been published for the first time in the "Mémorial C, Recueil des Sociétés et Associations" on December 8, 2000. The Articles have been lastly amended on May 5, 2017 and the amendments were published in the RESA (Recueil électronique des sociétés et associations) on May 19, 2017.

The list of the funds managed by the Management Company, may be obtained, on simple request, at the registered office of the Management Company.

The Fund works as an umbrella fund, which means that it is comprised of Sub-Funds, each of which represents a specific class of assets and liabilities (the "Sub-Funds").

All of the following Sub-Funds are open to subscription.

In order to realise the investment objective outlined below, the assets of the following Sub-Funds (disclosed with their defined index),

MARKET ACCESS NYSE ARCA GOLD BUGS INDEX UCITS ETF - NYSE ARCA Gold BUGS Index

MARKET ACCESS ROGERS INTERNATIONAL COMMODITY INDEX UCITS ETF - Rogers International Commodity Index®

were managed as follows:

The objective of each Sub-Fund is to replicate, as far as possible, the performance of the defined index (the "Index"). In order to gain exposure to the Index, each Sub-Fund will use a method of synthetic replication of the Index.

It is intended that each Sub-Fund's assets will be invested mainly in equities and other securities classed as equities, Money Market Instruments, money market funds, negotiable debt instruments and debt or interest rate instruments, synthetic Money Market Instruments (i.e. equities and/or fixed income securities which performance is exchanged against Money Market Instruments linked performance), bonds and other debt instruments.

The Sub-Fund may also use management techniques and instruments available to UCITS, such as repurchase agreements, securities lending and borrowing.

On an ancillary basis, the Sub-Fund may also hold cash.

In order to realise its investment objective outlined above, each Sub-Fund entered into a performance swap agreement (the "Swap Agreement") with Barclays Bank plc (the "Swap Counterparty"), denominated in EUR. Through such Swap Agreement, each Sub-Fund will exchange the total return of the performance of its portfolio against payment by the Swap Counterparty of the performance of the Index.

The Swap Agreement's notional amount will be adjusted when subscriptions or redemptions are received by the Sub-Fund and, where applicable, in case of movements on the securities portfolio.

The transactions above will be carried out in strict compliance with the applicable regulations and the investment restrictions applicable to the Sub-Fund.

The MARKET ACCESS STOXX®CHINA A MINIMUM VARIANCE INDEX UCITS ETF (the "China MV Sub-Fund")'s objective is to replicate, as far as possible, the performance of the STOXX® China A 900 Minimum Variance Unconstrained AM Index (the "China MV Index") or the "Index").

In order to gain exposure to the China MV Index, the China MV Sub-Fund will use a method of direct replication of the China MV Index. The method effectively used will be disclosed in the monthly fact sheets available at www.marketaccessetf.com.

In seeking to achieve its investment objective, the China MV Sub-Fund will aim to invest in the constituents of the Index in generally the same proportions in which they are included in the Index as of the launch date of the China MV Sub-Fund.

## Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2021 (continued)

#### 1. General (continued)

This is expected to involve investing primarily in onshore RMB (i.e. CNY) denominated equity securities issued by issuers based in, or having a significant exposure to, the People's Republic of China ("PRC"), excluding Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan ("Mainland China"), as further described below.

The Investment Manager intends investing directly into China A-Shares listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and/or the Shenzhen Stock Exchange using the Shanghai-Hong Kong and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect programmes (as further described in the Prospectus in sub-section (iv) of section (e) *Risk Considerations*).

There may be circumstances when it is not possible or practicable for the China MV Sub-Fund to invest in all constituents of the Index. Such circumstances may include (but are not limited to): (i) a limited availability of the Index constituents; (ii) trading suspensions on constituents of the Index; (iii) cost inefficiencies; (iv) if the assets under management of the China MV Sub-Fund are relatively small, or (v) where there are internal or regulatory driven trading restrictions (as detailed in the Prospectus under Section 5 (*Investment Restrictions*) and in sub-section (iv) of section (e) *Risk Considerations*) that apply to the China MV Sub-Fund, the Management Company and/or the Investment Manager but not the Index.

If the China MV Sub-Fund's assets fall below a size whereby the Investment Manager considers it is not possible and/or practicable to maintain a fully replicated strategy, the Investment Manager may reduce exposure to certain securities in the Index, but will aim to ensure that the China MV Sub-Fund's portfolio of assets will replicate the returns of the Index as far as possible. However, in such circumstances, the China MV Sub-Fund may not take exposure to all securities in the Index on the basis that the Index contains too many securities to efficiently purchase and/or, at times, certain securities included in the Index are difficult to purchase on the relevant markets in the required size or for other reasons.

The Fund may use derivative instruments, including, but not limited to, swaps, futures, forwards, foreign exchange contracts (including spot and forward contracts), equity options, contracts for difference, certificates, notes and warrants which may be used to reduce tracking error between the China MV Sub-Fund's performance and that of the Index. These instruments may be used for efficient portfolio management and/or investment purposes. The primary policy of the China MV Sub-Fund is to acquire securities included in the Index, as described above, but derivative instruments may be used where the direct holdings of securities may not be possible or where tracking error can be better minimised by using derivative instruments.

#### 2. Summary of significant accounting policies

#### a) Presentation of the financial statements

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Luxembourg regulations relating to undertakings for collective investment.

The financial statements are presented on the basis of the latest net asset value calculated at the end of the financial year. In accordance with the prospectus, the net asset values were calculated using the latest exchange rates known at the time of calculation.

#### b) Combined

The combined statement of net assets and statement of changes in net assets are expressed in Euro (EUR).

#### c) Valuation of investments in securities

Securities listed on an official stock exchange or dealt in on a Regulated Market are valued on the basis of the last known price in Luxembourg on the Valuation Date and, if this security is traded on several markets, on the last known price of the market considered to be the principal market for these securities. If the last known price is not representative, the valuation is based on the probable realisation value estimated by the Board of Directors with due care and in good faith. Securities not listed on an official stock market or dealt in on a Regulated Market are valued on the basis of the probable realisation value estimated by the Board of Directors conservatively and in good faith.

#### d) Valuation of Forward Exchange Contracts

The liquidating value of forward exchange contracts not traded on exchanges or on other regulated markets shall mean their net liquidating value determined, pursuant to the policies established by the Board of Directors, on a basis consistently applied for each different variety of contracts. The liquidating value of forward exchange contracts traded on exchanges and regulated markets shall be based upon the last available settlement prices of these contracts on exchanges and regulated markets on which the particular forward exchange contracts are traded by the Fund; provided that if a forward exchange contract could not be liquidated on the day with respect to which net assets are being determined, the basis for determining the liquidating value of such contract shall be such value as the Board of Directors may deem fair and reasonable.

## Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2021 (continued)

#### 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

#### e) Valuation of Swaps

Index or financial instrument related swaps are valued at their market value established by reference to the applicable index or financial instrument. The valuation of the swap agreement - related to the index or a financial instrument - is based upon the market value of such swap transaction, which is subject to parameters such as the level of the underlying index, the interest rates, the equity dividend yields and the estimated index volatility.

For the avoidance of doubt, in exceptional circumstances where some of the prices of the underlying constituents of an index are stale because the relevant markets on which they are traded are closed for trading or because of a market disruption event or a suspension in trading on a given day, the valuation of such swap referencing the index may be adjusted to reflect the next available live prices for the affected constituents. This adjusted swap valuation will be determined by the Pricing Agent(s) and verified by the Investment Manager and the Central Administrative Agent.

#### f) Net realised gain or loss on sales of investments

Realised gains or losses on sales of investments are calculated on the basis of average cost of the investments sold.

#### g) Net realised gain or loss on swaps

The net realised gain or loss on sale of swaps is determined on the basis of the average cost of swaps sold.

#### h) Conversion of foreign currencies

The accounting records and the financial statements of each Sub-Fund are expressed in the respective currencies of the Sub-Funds as mentioned in the statements (EUR and CNH). Bank accounts, other net assets and market value of the investments in securities expressed in currencies other than the Sub-Funds' currencies are converted into the Sub-Funds' currencies at the rates of exchange prevailing at year-end. Income and expenses in currencies other than the Sub-Funds' currencies are converted into the Sub-Funds' currencies at the rate of exchange prevailing at payment date.

Exchange rates used as at December 31, 2021:

1 EUR = 1.036160 CHF 1 EUR = 7.231521 CNH 1 EUR = 7.247790 CNY 1 EUR = 1.137200 USD

#### i) Cost of investments in securities

Cost of investments in securities in currencies other than Sub-Fund currency is converted into EUR and CNH at the exchange rate applicable at purchase date.

#### j) Formation expenses

The Fund bears the upfront costs, including the cost of drawing up and any other costs relating to the incorporation and launch of the Fund. These costs are charged to the initial Sub-Fund immediately upon launching (no amortisation). For all active Sub-Funds, the start-up costs have been borne by the Sponsor.

#### 3. Service agent fees

For the following Sub-Funds, the effective Service agent fees, including all the costs and expenses, except the transaction costs are as follows as at December 31, 2021:

Name of the Sub-Fund

MARKET ACCESS NYSE ARCA GOLD BUGS INDEX UCITS ETF

MARKET ACCESS ROGERS INTERNATIONAL COMMODITY INDEX UCITS ETF

MARKET ACCESS STOXX® CHINA A MINIMUM VARIANCE INDEX UCITS ETF

0.45% p.a.

## Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2021 (continued)

#### 3. Service agent fees (continued)

These service agent fees are calculated on the average of net assets of the Sub-Funds and payable on a quarterly basis.

All these fees are disclosed under the caption "Service Agent fees" in the Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the year ended December 31, 2021.

The Depositary Bank fees are charged out of the assets of the relevant Sub-Fund of the Fund in accordance with normal practice in Luxembourg<sup>(1)</sup> and included in the Service Agent fee as detailed here above.

(1) Depositary Bank fees mainly composed of safe custody charges as detailed here below:

- 0.025% p.a on the net assets up to EUR 50 mio;
- 0.020% p.a on the net assets between EUR 50 mio and EUR 100 mio;
- 0.015% p.a on the net assets over EUR 100 mio;
- with a minimum of EUR 20,000 for the entire Fund.

Fees are calculated quarterly in arrears on the average of net assets calculated at the frequency of each Net Asset Value calculation.

#### 4. Taxation

#### Subscription tax

The Sub-Funds are as a rule liable in Luxembourg to a subscription tax (*taxe d'abonnement*) of 0.05% per annum of their net asset value as set out in the relevant Sub-Fund's Particulars. Such tax is payable quarterly at the end of the relevant quarter and is calculated on the basis of the aggregate net asset value of the Sub-Funds at the end of the relevant calendar quarter. No such tax is payable on the value of assets which consist of units or shares of other Luxembourg funds that have already been subject to such tax. No Luxembourg tax is payable on the realised capital appreciation of the assets of the Sub-Fund.

 $However, an exemption from such subscription \ tax \ is \ \textit{inter alia} \ available \ to \ the \ relevant \ Sub-Fund(s), \ namely, \ those:$ 

- (a) whose securities are listed or traded on at least one stock exchange or another regulated market operating regularly, recognised and open to the public; and
- (b) whose exclusive object is to replicate the performance of one or more indices (as these terms are interpreted under applicable Luxembourg regulations) on the basis of Article 175(e) of the 2010 Law.

The application of such exemption is based on regulatory and tax provisions as these are known to the Board of Directors at the time of this note. Such assessment is subject to such changes in the Luxembourg legal, regulatory and tax provisions by any competent Luxembourg authority as will exist from time to time. Furthermore, other exemptions or reduction of the applicable rate (e.g. to 0.01% per annum) are available under the conditions of Articles 174 and 175 of the 2010 Law. Any change in the status of an investor may subject the entire relevant Sub-Fund(s) to a subscription tax at the rate of 0.05%.

Under certain conditions, reduced rates ranging from 0.04% to 0.01% may also be available for the portion of the net assets of a UCI or of an individual compartment of a UCI with multiple compartments that are invested in sustainable economic activities (as defined in Article 3 of Regulation (EU) 2020/852 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 18 June 2020 on the establishment of a framework to facilitate sustainable investment, and amending Regulation (EU) 2019/2088).

#### Income tax

Under current law and practice, the Fund is not liable to any Luxembourg tax on profits or income.

#### Value added tax

The Fund is considered in Luxembourg as a taxable person for value added tax ("VAT") purposes without any input VAT deduction right. A VAT exemption applies in Luxembourg for services qualifying as fund management services. Other services supplied to the Fund could potentially trigger VAT and require the VAT registration of the Fund in Luxembourg as to self-assess the VAT regarded as due in Luxembourg on taxable services (or goods to some extent) purchased from abroad.

## Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2021 (continued)

#### 4. Taxation (continued)

No VAT liability arises in principle in Luxembourg in respect of any payments by the Fund to its shareholders, to the extent that such payments are linked to their subscription to the Fund's shares and do not constitute the consideration received for taxable services supplied.

#### **US Foreign Account Tax Compliance Requirements ("FATCA")**

The FATCA provisions are contained in the Hiring Incentives to Restore Employment Act (the "**Hire Act**"), which was signed into U.S. law on March 18, 2010. These provisions are U.S. legislation aimed at reducing tax evasion by U.S. citizens. It requires financial institutions outside the U.S. ("**foreign financial institutions**" or "**FFIs**") to report information about financial accounts held by specified U.S. persons to the Internal Revenue Service (the "**IRS**") on an annual basis.

A 30% withholding tax is imposed on the U.S. source income (including dividends and interests) of any FFI that fails to comply with this requirement. This regime became effective from July 1, 2014.

Generally, non U.S. funds, such as the Fund, are FFIs and entered into FFI agreements with the IRS unless they qualified under the FATCA rules as "deemed-compliant" FFIs, or, if subject to a model 1 intergovernmental agreement (the "IGA"), they complied with their local country IGA. IGAs are agreements between the US and foreign jurisdictions to implement FATCA compliance.

On March 28, 2014, the Government of the United States of America and the Government of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg entered into an IGA to "Improve International Tax Compliance and with respect to The United States information reporting provisions commonly known as the Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act" (the "Luxembourg Model1 IGA").

The Luxembourg Model 1 IGA was approved by way of legislation on July 24, 2015.

The Fund qualifies as a "Collective Investment Vehicle" within the meaning of Annex II section IV paragraph D of the Luxembourg Model 1 IGA, to the extent that all of its shares are "held by or through Financial Institutions that are not Nonparticipating Financial Institutions", as such terms are defined under the Luxembourg Model 1 IGA.

In accordance with the Luxembourg Model 1 IGA, Collective Investment Vehicles are treated as Non-Reporting Luxembourg Financial Institutions that shall be treated as deemed-compliant FFIs for purposes of section 1471 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code.

In order to ensure that the Fund can maintain its classification as a Collective Investment Vehicle for the purposes of FATCA, any natural person shall be deemed to be a Prohibited Person and, therefore, will not be able to invest directly into any Sub-Fund.

#### **Common Reporting Standard**

The Fund may be subject to the Standard for Automatic Exchange of Financial Account Information in Tax matters (the "Standard") and its CRS as set out in the Luxembourg Law of December 18, 2015 on the automatic exchange of financial account information in the field of taxation law (the "CRS Law").

Under the terms of the CRS Law, the Fund expects to be treated as a Luxembourg Non-Reporting Financial Institution (specifically as an "Exempt Collective Investment Vehicle" within the meaning of Annex I Section VIII B9 of the CRS Law) to the extent that all of the shares in the Fund are held by or through Financial Institutions located in CRS participating jurisdictions as defined in the CRS Law. As a result any share of the Fund acquired through or held by a Prohibited Person may cause the Fund to be in breach of the CRS Law.

To ensure that the Fund regularly satisfies these restrictions, potential and existing investors on the primary market may be requested to provide additional information to the Administrative Agent or the Fund, along with the required supporting documentary evidence, so that the Fund is able to satisfy its due diligence obligations under the CRS Law. This information, as exhaustively set out in Chapter 1 Article 4 of the CRS Law (the "Information"), may include personal data related to certain investors.

In this context, Primary Authorised Participants (or other eligible Institutional Investors in case of unlisted share classes) are hereby informed that, as data controller, the Fund will process the Information for the purposes as set out in the CRS Law. Such shareholders have a right to access any personal data related to them as contained in the Information and to request rectification of such personal data if they are inaccurate and/or incomplete. For these purposes, the relevant shareholders may contact the Fund in writing at the Administrative Agent's address mentioned on page 3 of the Prospectus.

## Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2021 (continued)

#### 4. Taxation (continued)

In particular, Primary Authorised Participants (or other eligible Institutional Investors in case of unlisted share classes) undertake to inform the Administrative Agent or the Fund within thirty (30) days of receipt of these statements if any Information as contained in these statements is not accurate.

Such shareholders further undertake to promptly inform the Administrative Agent or the Fund of and provide them with all supporting documentary evidence of any changes related to the Information.

Any Primary Authorised Participant (or another eligible Institutional Investors in case of unlisted share classes) that fails to comply with the Fund's documentation or Information requests may be subject to liability for penalties imposed on the Fund and attributable to such shareholder's failure to provide the Information under the terms of the applicable law.

#### **Financial Transaction Taxes**

A number of jurisdictions have implemented, or are considering implementing, certain taxes on the sale, purchase or transfer of financial instruments (including derivatives), such taxes commonly known as the "Financial Transaction Tax" ("FTT"). By way of example, the EU Commission adopted a proposal on February 14, 2013 for a common Financial Transaction Tax (the "Draft Directive") which affected:

- (a) financial transactions to which a financial institution established in one of the 10 participating Member States (Austria, Belgium, France, Germany, Greece, Italy, Portugal, Spain, Slovakia and Slovenia (the "Participating Member States")) is a party; and
- (b) financial transactions in financial instruments issued in a participating Member State regardless of where they are traded.

In addition, certain countries such as *inter alia* France, Italy and Spain have implemented their own financial transaction tax provisions at a domestic level already and others, including both EU and non-EU countries, may do so in the future.

The imposition of any such taxes may impact the Sub-Funds and their respective performance in a number of ways and notably as follows:

- (c) where a Sub-Fund enters directly into transactions for the sale, purchase or transfer of financial instruments, FTT may be payable by this Sub-Fund and the net asset value of this Sub-Fund may be adversely impacted;
- (d) where underlying funds enter into transactions for the sale, purchase or transfer of financial instruments, FTT may be payable by the underlying funds and the net asset value of such underlying funds may be adversely impacted, which may in turn adversely affect the net asset value of the relevant Sub-Funds;
- (e) subscriptions, transfers and redemptions of the Fund's shares may be affected by FTT.

The legislative process towards the adoption of the Draft Directive has never been concluded and the FTT is still under discussion at the European level. It is expected that the Commission will propose in 2024 the introduction of new measures which might include a FTT. Prospective investors should consult their own tax advisers in relation to the consequences of any FTT associated with subscribing, purchasing, holding and disposing of shares in Sub-Funds.

#### Other taxes

No stamp duty or other tax is generally payable at a proportional rate in Luxembourg on the issue of shares. However, the incorporation and any subsequent amendment of the articles of incorporation of the Fund is generally subject to a fixed registration duty of EUR 75.

The Fund may be subject to withholding tax or other taxes on dividends and interest and to tax on capital gains in the country of origin of its investments. Those taxes may not be recoverable by the Fund in Luxembourg.

#### Luxembourg tax residency of the shareholders

A shareholder will not become resident, nor be deemed to be resident, in Luxembourg by reason only of the holding and/or disposing of the shares or the execution, performance or enforcement of his/her rights thereunder.

#### Income tax

Luxembourg resident shareholders

A Luxembourg resident shareholder is not liable to any Luxembourg income tax on reimbursement of share capital previously contributed to the Fund.

## Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2021 (continued)

#### 4. Taxation (continued)

#### Luxembourg resident individuals

Dividends and other payments derived from the shares by a resident individual shareholder, who acts in the course of the management of either his/her private wealth or his/her professional/business activity, are subject to income tax at the ordinary progressive rates.

Capital gains realised upon the disposal of the shares by a resident individual shareholder, who acts in the course of the management of his/her private wealth, are not subject to income tax, unless said capital gains qualify either as speculative gains or as gains on a substantial participation. Capital gains are deemed to be speculative and are thus subject to income tax at ordinary rates if the shares are disposed of within six (6) months after their acquisition or if their disposal precedes their acquisition. A participation is deemed to be substantial where a resident individual shareholder holds or has held, either alone or together with his spouse or partner and/or minor children, directly or indirectly at any time within the five (5) years preceding the disposal, more than ten percent (10%) of the share capital of the company whose shares are being disposed of. A shareholder is also deemed to alienate a substantial participation if he acquired free of charge, within the five (5) years preceding the transfer, a participation that was constituting a substantial participation in the hands of the alienator (or the alienators in case of successive transfers free of charge within the same five-year period). Capital gains realised on a substantial participation more than six (6) months after the acquisition thereof are taxed according to the half-global rate method (i.e. the average rate applicable to the total income is calculated according to progressive income tax rates and half of the average rate is applied to the capital gains realised on the substantial participation). A disposal may include a sale, an exchange, a contribution or any other kind of alienation of the participation.

Capital gains realised on the disposal of the shares by a resident individual shareholder, who acts in the course of the management of his/her professional/business activity, are subject to income tax at ordinary rates. Taxable gains are determined as being the difference between the price for which the shares have been disposed of and the lower of their cost or book value.

#### Luxembourg resident companies

A Luxembourg resident company (socièté de capitaux) must include any profits derived, as well as any gain realised on the sale, disposal or redemption of shares, in their taxable profits for Luxembourg income tax assessment purposes.

#### Luxembourg residents benefiting from a special tax regime

Shareholders who are Luxembourg resident companies benefiting from a special tax regime, such as (i) specialised investment funds governed by the law of February 13, 2007, as amended, (ii) family wealth management companies governed by the law of May 11, 2007, as amended, (iii) undertakings for collective investment governed by the 2010 Law as amended, (iv) reserved alternative investment funds treated as a specialised investment fund for Luxembourg tax purposes and governed by the law of July 23, 2016, as amended, are exempt from income taxes in Luxembourg and profits derived from the shares are thus not subject to Luxembourg income taxes.

#### Luxembourg non-resident shareholders

A non-resident, who has neither a permanent establishment nor a permanent representative in Luxembourg to which or whom the shares are attributable, is not liable to any Luxembourg income tax on income received and capital gains realised upon the sale, disposal or redemption of the shares.

A non-resident company which has a permanent establishment or a permanent representative in Luxembourg to which the shares are attributable, must include any income received, as well as any gain realised on the sale, disposal or redemption of shares, in its taxable income for Luxembourg tax assessment purposes. Taxable gains are determined as being the difference between the sale, repurchase or redemption price and the lower of the cost or book value of the shares sold or redeemed.

#### Net wealth tax

A Luxembourg resident, as well as a non-resident who has a permanent establishment or a permanent representative in Luxembourg to which the shares are attributable, are subject to Luxembourg net wealth tax on such shares, except if the shareholder is (i) a resident or non-resident individual taxpayer, (ii) an undertaking for collective investment governed by the 2010 Law, (iii) a securitization company governed by the law of March 22, 2004 on securitization, (iv) a company governed by the law of June 15, 2004 on venture capital vehicles, (v) a specialised investment fund governed by the amended law of February 13, 2007, (vi) a family wealth management company governed by the law of May 11, 2007, (vii) a professional pension institution governed by the amended law of July 13, 2005, or (viii) a reserved alternative investment fund governed by the amended law of July 23, 2016.

## Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2021 (continued)

#### 4. Taxation (continued)

However, (i) a securitisation company subject to the amended law of March 22, 2004, (ii) an tax-opaque venture capital company subject to the amended law of June 15, 2004, (iii) a professional pension institution subject to the amended law of July 13, 2005, and (iv) a tax opaque reserved alternative investment fund treated as a venture capital vehicle for Luxembourg tax purposes and subject to the amended law of July 23, 2016 remain subject to the minimum net wealth tax in Luxembourg.

#### Other taxes

Under Luxembourg tax law, where an individual shareholder is a resident of Luxembourg for tax purposes at the time of his/her death, the shares are included in his or her taxable basis for inheritance tax purposes. On the contrary, no inheritance tax is levied on the transfer of the shares upon death of a shareholder in cases where the deceased was not a resident of Luxembourg for inheritance purposes.

Gift tax may be due on a gift or donation of the shares, if the gift is recorded in a Luxembourg notarial deed or otherwise registered in Luxembourg.

#### 5. Changes in the composition of the portfolio

The changes in the composition of the portfolio are available upon request and free of charge from the registered office

#### 6. Swap contracts (total return swaps)

As at December 31, 2021, the Sub-Funds have invested in the following unfunded performance swaps contracts:

#### MARKET ACCESS NYSE ARCA GOLD BUGS INDEX UCITS ETF

Type	Currency Notional	on Paying le	g Receiving leg	Notional on	Unrealised Counterpar	ty Maturity
	bas	ket		index	gain	
Un-funded performance					J.P. Morga	an
swaps	EUR 1,000	.00 (69,621,419.90	) 75,548,223.01	298,832.99198	756,385.85 Securities P	lc 12/02/2022

The collateral delivered to the counterparty J.P. Morgan Securities Plc amounts to EUR 750,000 as at December 31, 2021.

#### MARKET ACCESS ROGERS INTERNATIONAL COMMODITY INDEX UCITS ETF

Type	Currency N	otional on	Paying leg	Receiving leg	Notional on	Unrealised	Counterparty	Maturity
		basket			index	(loss)		
Un-funded performance							Barclays	
swaps	EUR	1,000.00	(68,313,219.24)	70,932,687.69	25,233.17362	(896,567.28)	Bank Plc	06/15/2022

There was no collateral delivered to, or received by, the counterparty Barclays Bank Plc as at December 31, 2021.

#### 7. Transactions costs

For the year ended December 31, 2021, transaction costs relating to purchase or sale of transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing are supported by the Fund.

Transaction fees relating to swap contracts are disclosed under the caption "Charge on swaps" in the Statement of Changes in Net Assets of the Sub-Funds.

#### 8. Director's fees

At year ended December 31, 2021, the directors' remuneration is as follows:

Michèle Eisenhuth: EUR 25,000 per annum Chris Satterfield (employee of China Post & Capital Global Asset Management Limited): zero Daniel Dolan (employee of China Post Global (UK) Limited): zero

Directors' remuneration is paid out of the TER (as detailed in Note 3) for the Sub-Funds, so there is no additional cost to investors.

#### 9. Risk monitoring - Global exposure

For all Sub-Funds, the global exposure is calculated in accordance to the CSSF Circular 11/512 & ESMA guidelines 10-788. The global exposure calculation method used for each Sub-Fund at December 31, 2021, is as follows:

## Notes to the Financial Statements as at December 31, 2021 (continued)

#### 9. Risk monitoring - Global exposure (continued)

Sub-Fund name	Global Exposure Calculation Method
MARKET ACCESS NYSE ARCA GOLD BUGS INDEX UCITS ETF	Commitment
MARKET ACCESS ROGERS INTERNATIONAL COMMODITY INDEX UCITS ETF	Commitment
MARKET ACCESS STOXX® CHINA A MINIMUM VARIANCE INDEX UCITS ETF	Commitment

#### 10. Events occurred during the year

On February 12, 2021, following regulatory approval by the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (the "CSSF") in Luxembourg, Apex Group Ltd. became the ultimate controlling shareholder of FundRock Management Company S.A. and FundRock Management Company S.A. is as of this date a subsidiary of Apex Group Ltd. FundRock Management Company S.A. has not changed its name or its operations.

The most notable event of 2021 from the Fund's perspective was the strong performance of commodities generally, led by oil with both Brent Crude and WTI futures gaining more than 50% over the year. This helped the Rogers International Commodity sub-fund to a +49.4% return for the financial year. FY2021 also saw generally strong equity market performances globally, as most major economies returned to positive growth following the pandemic-driven contraction of 2020. China was no exception to this trend, with the China Minimum Variance sub-fund gaining +16.2% for the year. Conversely, gold recorded a drop of roughly 4% in 2021, with reduced investor demand for safe haven assets as equity markets rebounded. This impacted negatively on gold mining stocks, with the Gold BUGS sub-fund falling 6.8% over the year.

#### Covid-19:

The Covid-19 pandemic had no material operating or financial impact on the Fund in FY2021. Operationally - all of the Fund's key service providers, including the Management Company, Administrator, Depositary, Investment Manager and Auditor, continued operating at normal capacity throughout the financial year. Although their staff worked from home for all or part of the year, remote access and experience from 2020 ensured no adverse impact on any of the parties. All Sub-Fund NAVs were calculated and published daily throughout the financial year, and all Sub-Funds remained open for dealing. Daily risk & compliance controls were carried out as normal throughout the reporting period.

Financially - Covid-19 did not have an adverse impact on the NAV performance of the Sub-Funds during the financial year. Two of the Fund's three Sub-Funds saw strongly positive performances for the financial year (Rogers International Commodity up 49.4%, China Minimum Variance up 16.2%), with the third Sub-Fund seeing a minor fall for 2021 (Gold BUGS down 6.8%).

#### 11. Subsequent events

In February 2022, a number of countries (including the US, UK and EU) imposed sanctions against certain entities and individuals in Russia as a result of the official recognition of the Donetsk People's Republic and Lugansk People's Republic by the Russian Federation. Announcements of potential and actual additional sanctions have been made by a number of countries (again including the US, UK and EU) following military operations initiated by Russia against the Ukraine on 24 February 2022.

The situation, together with markedly increased fluctuations in commodity prices and foreign exchange rates, and the risk of significant adverse impact on global economies, has driven a sharp increase in volatility across markets. The Directors regard these events for the Fund and any of its Sub-Funds as non-adjusting events after the reporting period.

Although neither the Fund's nor its Sub-Funds' performance, going concern or operations, at the date of this report, have been impacted significantly by the above, the Directors continue to monitor the evolving situation and its impact on the financial position of the Fund and its Sub-Funds.

#### Unaudited Information for Shareholders

#### Remuneration Policy of the Management Company

FundRock Management Company S.A. ("FundRock") has established and applies a remuneration policy in accordance with the ESMA Guidelines on sound remuneration policies under the UCITS V Directive (ESMA 2016/575) and AIFMD (ESMA 2016/579) and any related legal & regulatory provisions applicable in Luxembourg. The remuneration policy is aligned with the business strategy, objectives, values and interests of the Management Company and the Funds that it manages and of the investors in such Funds, and which includes, inter alia, measures to avoid conflicts of interest; and it is consistent with and promotes sound and effective risk management and does not encourage risk taking which is inconsistent with the risk profiles, rules or instruments of incorporation of the Funds that the Management Company manages.

FundRock ensures that its remuneration policy adequately reflects the predominance of its oversight activity within its core activities. As such, it should be noted that FundRock's employees who are identified as risk-takers under UCITS V are not remunerated based on the performance of the funds under management.

A paper version of the remuneration policy is made available free of charge to investors at FundRock's registered office. FundRock's remuneration policy can also be found at:

https://www.fundrock.com/policies-and-compliance/remuneration-policy/

The amount of remuneration for the financial year ending December 31, 2021 paid by FundRock to its

staff: EUR 11,293,609

Fixed remuneration: EUR 10,565,583 Variable remuneration: EUR 728,026

Number of beneficiaries: 135

The aggregated amount of remuneration for the financial year ending December 31, 2021 paid by FundRock to Identified staff/risk takers is EUR 2.622.285.

The total amount of remuneration is based on a combination of the assessment of the performance of the individual, the overall results of FundRock, and when assessing individual performance, financial as well as non-financial criteria are taken into account.

The Policy is subject to annual review by the Compliance Officer and the update is performed by HR department of FundRock and is presented for review to the Remuneration Committee and approval by the Board of FundRock.

### Unaudited Information for Shareholders (continued)

#### **SFTR Disclosures**

Transaction type(s): Total Return Swaps (TRS) in all cases

Sub-Fund Name	NAV Date	Sub-Fund Assets (EUR)	Swap Counterparty	Counterparty Domicile	Swap Value (EUR)	Swap Value (%)	Swap Maturity	Maturity Bucket	Settlement & Clearing
MARKET ACCESS NYSE ARCA GOLD BUGS INDEX UCITS ETF	12/31/2021	75,497,129	JP Morgan Securities plc	UK	757,309	1.00%	12/02/2022	3 months - 1 year	Bilateral
MARKET ACCESS ROGERS INTERNATIONAL COMMODITY INDEX UCITS ETF	12/31/2021	70,863,755	Barclays Bank plc	UK	(909,250)	1.31%	06/15/2022	3 months - 1 year	Bilateral

<sup>(1)</sup> The swap valuations take into account the swap fee accruals which are due to be paid to the swap counterparty

The return and cost for each TRS is disclosed in the Statement of Changes in Net Assets section above. 100% of TRS fees are paid to the applicable Swap Counterparty. 0% is paid to the investment manager, the SICAV or any other party.

#### SUSTAINABLE FINANCE DISCLOSURE REGULATION

The Fund and its Sub-Funds are not taking into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities in their investment strategy.

#### MARKET ACCESS

Report on the Activities of the Fund for Swiss Investors

#### Total Costs and Charges (TER)

The TER is calculated in accordance with the Asset Management Association (AMAS) Guidelines on the calculation and disclosure of the Total Expense Ratio (TER) of collective investment schemes, 16 May 2008 (Version dated 5 August 2021).

This ratio expresses the sum of all fees and incidental costs charged on an ongoing basis to the collective investment scheme's assets (operating expenses) taken retrospectively as a percentage of the net assets, and is in principle calculated using the following formula:

For the period 01/01/2021 to 31/12/2021:

Sub-Fund name	TER %	CU
MARKET ACCESS ROGERS INTERNATIONAL COMMODITY INDEX UCITS ETF	1.57%	EUR
MARKET ACCESS NYSE ARCA GOLD BUGS INDEX UCITS ETF	1.10%	EUR
MARKET ACCESS STOXX CHINA A MINIMUM VARIANCE INDEX UCITS ETF	0.93%	EUR

#### **Fund Performance**

The performance of the fund is shown in % for the most recent financial year, 01/01/2021 to 31/12/2021, and for the previous three calendar years 2020, 2019 and 2018. Please note that the Market Access STOXX China A Minimum Variance Index UCITS ETF launched on 7<sup>th</sup> June 2018, so there is only a partial year performance for this fund in 2018.

Sub-Fund name	2021	2020	2019	2018
MARKET ACCESS ROGERS INTERNATIONAL COMMODITY INDEX UCITS ETF	49.51%	(16.56%)	12.19%	(5.89%)
MARKET ACCESS NYSE ARCA GOLD BUGS INDEX UCITS ETF	-6.82%	13.41%	52.17%	(12.85%)
MARKET ACCESS STOXX CHINA A MINIMUM VARIANCE INDEX UCITS ETF	16.79%	12.05%	15.57%	(20.71%)

Past performance is no indication of current or future performance, and

The performance data do not take account of the commissions and costs incurred on the issue and redemption of units.

<sup>\*</sup> CU = currency units in the accounting currency of the collective investment scheme

#### ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS IN SWITZERLAND

In Switzerland, the prospectus, the Key Investor Information Document, the articles of association, the annual and semi-annual reports and list of purchases and sales, may be obtained free of charge from the Swiss Representative and Paying Agent, RBC Investor Services Bank S.A., Esch-sur-Alzette, Zurich Branch, Bleicherweg 7, CH-8027 Zurich. In respect of the units offered in Switzerland, the place of performance is the registered office of the Representative. The place of jurisdiction is at the registered office of the Representative or at the registered office or place of residence of the investor."